
           

Citizens' Panel for Review of
Police Complaints and Use of
Force Regular Meeting

   

July 8, 2025 | 6 p.m.
 

Chandler Police Department
Main Station Community Room
250 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

  

  
Panel Members
Samuel Enoch
Gina Giammona
Jill Slavin
Allen Leibowitz
Debra Schinke
Flor Martinez
Jason Diefenbacher
Chris Tiller
James Bogert
Dawn Vukadinovich
Joshua Whitaker
Joseph Yang
Jeff Jones
Hilary Jenkins
Annette Taylor Ruiz

Police Members   
Cmdr. Daniel Shellum
Sgt. Dan Greene
Det. Danielle Stein
Lt. Nicole Vasey
Cmdr. Preston Pierce
(Alternate)

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby
given to the members of the Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force and to
the general public that the Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force will hold
a REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Wednesday, July 8, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., at Chandler
Police Department, Main Station Community Room, 250 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ. One or
more Commissioners may be attending by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services
by contacting the City Clerk's office at (480) 782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in
advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request. 

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
Regular Meeting Agenda - July 8, 2025

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the Board or Commission, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

1. April 1, 2025, Meeting Minutes
  Move Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force to approve the

minutes of the April 1, 2025, meeting.
 

Member Comments/Announcements
 

2. Introduction of newly appointed Panel member Annette Ruiz   
 

3. Introduction of newly appointed Panel member Christopher Tiller   
 

Action Agenda
 

4. Presentation by David Kerzie, Sergeant and Peer Support Lead   
 

5. Presentation by Brooke Tabacco, Wellness Coordinator   
 

6. Review and discuss the Shooting Incident of July 18, 2024, presented by Det.
Kallberg (2024-900690).

  

 

7. Review and discuss the Shooting Incident of August 1, 2024, presented by Det. Rietz
(2024-86444).

  

 

Page 2 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



 

8. Discussion and possible action to approve Annual Report: Citizens' Panel for Review
of Police Complaints and Use of Force Council memo for the Annual Report:
Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force, July 1, 2024–June
30, 2025.

  

 

9. Use of Force Summary Quarter 1 2025
  Discussion regarding the Use of Force Summary for the first quarter of 2025
 

Discussion
 

Briefing
 

Calendar
 

10. Next meeting will be Tuesday, October 7, 2025.   
 

Information Items
 

Adjourn
 

Page 3 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



ITEM  1 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/08/2025
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject: April 1, 2025, Meeting Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force to
approve the minutes of the April 1, 2025, meeting.

Attachments
April 1 Meeting Minutes 



CITIZENS’ PANEL FOR REVIEW OF POLICE COMPLAINTS AND USE OF FORCE SPECIAL 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

April 1, 2025 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Diefenbacher called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 PM 

 

Members in Attendance: 

Chairperson Jason Diefenbacher 

Vice Chair Flor Martinez 

Panel member Sam Enoch 

Panel member Allen Leibowitz  

Panel member Dawn Vukadinovich 

Panela member Laurie Fagen 

Panel member Gina Giammona 

Panel member Jeff Jones 

Panel member Hilary HC Jenkins 

Panel member James Bogert 

Panel member Debra Schinke 

Panel member Jill Slavin 

Panel member Josh Whitaker 

Panel member Joseph Yang 

 

Members Absent: 

Panel member Carlos Lozano 

 

Staff in Attendance: 

Police Chief Bryan Chapman 

Cmdr. Daniel Shellum 

Det. Danielle Stein 

Det. Cassandra Ynclan 

Det. Nikky Kallberg 

Ean White, Assistant City Attorney 

Pamela Leon, Staff Liaison 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2. SCHEDULED/UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES/CALL TO PUBLIC 

a. None 

 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

a. Minutes of January 7, 2025 

Panel member Fagen moved to approve the minutes of the January 7, 2025, 

Citizens’ Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force meeting. 

Panel member Bogert seconded the motion.  

The minutes were approved by all Panel members present.   

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. None 

 

5. ACTION AGENDA 

a. Address from Mayor Hartke 

 

Mayor Hartke thanked all board members for being part of the board. He 

invited all board members and staff  to the Boards and Commissions 

Appreciation Event being held April 16, 2025. Mayor Hartke discussed the 

special bond election set to occur in November 2025.  

 
b. Review and discuss Shooting Incident of March 3, 2024, presented by 

Det. Kallberg (2024-25768) 
 

Panel member Yang moved to approve the findings of the shooting 

investigation. Panel member Schinke seconded the motion. The findings 

of the investigation were approved by all Panel members present. 

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

c. Review and discuss Shooting Incident of May 8, 2024, presented by Det. 
Kallberg (2024-52256) 
 

Panel member Bogert moved to approve the findings of the shooting 

investigation. Panel member Yang seconded the motion. The findings of 

the investigation were approved by all Panel members present. 

 

The motion carried unanimously.  



Panel member Yang submitted a commendation for the Officers involved. 

 

d. Review and discuss Shooting Incident of March 23, 2024, presented by 
Det. Ynclan (2024-33487) 

 

Vice Chair Martinez moved to approve the findings of the shooting 

investigation. Panel member Whitaker seconded the motion. The 

findings of the investigation were approved by all Panel members 

present. 

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

e. Review and discuss Shooting Incident of August 29, 2024, presented 

by Det. Ynclan (2024-98143) 

 

Vice Chair Vukadinovich moved to approve the findings of the shooting 

investigation. Panel member Fagen seconded the motion. The findings of 

the investigation were approved by all Panel members present. 

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

f. Use of Force Summary Quarter 4 2024 

There were questions and discussion, but no questions specific to the use 

of force. Panel member Whitaker moved to approve the summary, 

seconded by Panel member Bogert. The motion was approved by all 

Panel members present. 

 

6. Discussion 

a. None  

 

7. CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Next meeting will be Tuesday, July 8, 2025, at 6:00 pm.  

 

 

 



8. INFORMATION ITEMS 

Panel member appreciation for outgoing members Carlos Lozano and Laurie 

Fagen. Carlos Lozano and Laurie Fagen presented with a retirement plaque by 

Commander Shellum.   

Chairperson Diefenbacher asked for feedback from the Panel. Panel 

member Bogert thanked the board and staff for providing rules and 

procedures. Chairperson Diefenbacher expressed the importance of staff 

providing body worn camera footage and how helpful it has become since the 

implementation of body worn cameras.  

Panel member Whitaker stated how impressed he was with Det. Ynlcan and 

Det. Kallberg during the officer involved shooting presentations.  

9. ADJOURNMENT 

Panel member Yang moved to adjourn, seconded by Panel member Bogert. 

The motion was approved by all Panel members present, and the meeting 

adjourned at approximately 7:40 p.m. 



ITEM  9 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/08/2025
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject:

Proposed Motion:
Discussion regarding the Use of Force Summary for the first quarter of 2025

Attachments
Use of Force Summary First Quarter 2025 




































































	Agenda
	AI 80078007
	       ATT_April 1 Meeting Minutes
	AI 8112 Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_Use of Force Summary First Quarter 2025

